Town of Onancock
Town Council Meeting
June 26, 2017
7:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Consideration and Approval of the Regular Town Council Minutes from the May 22,
2017 Meeting.

4. Public Business

a.

b.
C.

d.

€.

© 0N o

Public Hearing, Special Use Permit Application to Operate a Homestay,
Submitted by Kitty and Tom Cardaci - Mr. William Kerbin

Public Hearing, Water and Sewer Rate Changes — Mr. William Kerbin
Public Hearing, Proposed Town Code Regarding Vegetation Growth and
Maintenance - Mr. William Kerbin

Public Hearing, Transfer of Public Funds into a VML Account - Mr. William
Kerbin

Discussion of Onancock’s Police Department Staffing - Mr. William Kerbin
and Police Chief Eric Williams

Public Comment

Planning Commission Report - Councilmember Fletcher Fosque
Waterfront Committee Report — Councilmember T. Lee Byrd
Personnel Committee Report - Councilmember Catherine Krause
Holiday Committee Report - Councilmember Catherine Krause

10 Mayor's Report - Mayor Russell Jones

11. Town Manager’s Report - Mr. William Kerbin

12. Closed Session: Discussion of Personnel Performance, Pursuant to Section 2.2-3711
(A)(1}) of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as Amended

13. Adjourn



Town of Onancock
Town Council Meeting
May 22, 2017
7:00 PM

Call to Order and Roll Call:

Mavyor Jones called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and roll was called. Mayor Russell Jones and
Councilmembers Robert Bloxom, Catherine Krause, T. Lee Byrd, and Ray Burger were present.
Councilmembers Joshua Bundick and Fletcher Fosque were absent. A majority of members were
present and a quorum was established.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Consideration and Approval of the Budget Workshop minutes from the April 10, 2017 meeting, the
Budget Public Hearing minutes from the April 17, 2017 meeting and the minutes from Regular Town
Council meeting on April 24, 2017:

Mayor Jones asked if there were any additions, changes or corrections to any of the meeting minutes as
submitted.

With none, Councilmember Byrd made a motion to approve all of the minutes as submitted.
Councilmember Krause seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

Public Business: {Town Council heard item b, National Safe Boating Week Proclamation, before item a,
Adoption of the FY18 Budget)

a. Adoption of the FY18 Budget, Mr. William Kerbin: Town Manager Kerbin explained that the
budget before them this evening was what they recommended for approval from the April 17,
2017 public hearing on the budget.

Mayor Jones explained that the budget workshop on the proposed budget proved to be difficuit
and council struggled with how best to change the financial direction of the town. Mayor Jones
shared that in the five years he has been the Mayor he has watched the town's net worth
decrease by almost $400,000. Mayor Jones stressed that the town cannot continue to use its
savings to make ends meet year after year. There are several increases proposed in this budget
which should help close the gap in the coming year.

Mavyor Jones asked council for further comments.

Councilmember Byrd explained that the debt service on the sewer plant is one of the major
causes of the town’s financial situation. Councilmember Byrd shared that he believes that this
budget will help get us closer to breaking even.

Mayor Jones explained that the town’s debt service is $400,000 annually.

Councilmember Bloxom shared that in addition to the rate and tax increases staff was directed

to also cut some of the proposed expenditures which they did. Councilmember Bloxom thanked
Mr. Kerbin and Mrs. Fiege for their hard work on this proposed budget.



Mr. Haydon Rochester, King Street, asked council if the proposed increases will be enough to
overcome the town's financial shortfalls. Mayor Jones stated that these increases and the
hospital finally being online should help the town get closer to being balanced.

With no further discussion on the budget, Councilmember Bloxom made a motion to adopt FY
2018 Town of Onancock budget including the approval of all related tax and rate increases as
presented gt the budget public hearing. Councilmember Byrd seconded the motion. The motion
passed by unanimous voice vote.

National Safe Boating Week Proclamation, Mayor Russell Jones: Mayor Jones explained that this
is an annual item for consideration which makes a difference to us considering our positiocn on
the Chesapeake Bay. The Coast Guard representative, Jack Crawford, explained that they have
recently shifted their focus from recreational and commercial boating deaths to wake board
deaths. The Coast Guard has been taking an active role in educating those wake boarders.
Mavyor Jones suggested that the Coast Guard schedule a time to come down to the Onancock
Wharf to do courtesy boat inspections.

Mavyor Jones read the proclamation aloud.

Personnel Manual Update, Mr. William Kerbin: Mr. Kerbin explained that he and Police Chief
Williams and Mr. Bryan Horton have reviewed and revised the town’s personnel manual. Mr.
Kerbin also thanked Councilmembers Krause and Joshua Bundick for their additions and
suggestions. Mr. Kerbin explained that one major change to the personnel manual is the
consolidation of the street crew and the water/sewer department. They will now all be under
the department title of Public Works which will be headed up by Mr. Bryan Horton.

Councilmember Byrd asked that the Harbormaster job description be expanded upon to include
the importance of computer skills and the ability to generate profit and loss reports.

Mavyor Jones asked for public comment on this item.

With none, Councilmember Krause made a motion to adopt the revised personnel manual and
make it effective June 1, 2017 to all employees of the Town of Gnancock. Councilmember
Bloxom seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

Public Hearing, Water and Sewer Reconnection Fee Increase, Account Transfer Fee Increase and
Town Vehicle Decal Late Charges, Mr. William Kerbin: Mayor Jones opened the public hearing at

7:24 PM and ask council for comments.

Councilmember Krause asked if the vehicle decal late penalty was new. Mr. Kerbin confirmed
that it was.

Mrs. Kathy Boyd, Market Street, expressed her support of a vehicle decal late penalty.
With no further comment, Mayor Jones closed the public hearing at 7:28 PM.

Public Hearing, Denial of New Service Connections for those with Delinquent Water and Sewer
Accounts, Mr. William Kerbin: Mayor Jones opened the public hearing at 7:29 PM. Mayor Jones

2



shared that this item is straight forward and seems like something the town should already be
doing.

Councilmember Burger asked if this meant that those delinquent account holders would be
denied future services until they paid off their old water and sewer halances. Mr. Kerbin
confirmed that those individuals would not be granted new services until their debt with the
town was cleared up.

Mayor Jones asked for public comment. With none, Mayor Jones closed the public hearing at
7:31 PM and asked council for a motion to accept the changes in items d and e.

Councilmember Byrd made a motion to approve all of the items that were presented to council in
this evening’s public hearings. Councilmember Bloxom seconded the motion. The motion passed
by unanimous voice vote.

Amendment for Special Use Permit Application, 51 Market Street, Mr. William Kerbin: Mr.
Kerbin explained to council that in the February council meeting two special user permits were
approved but with the stipulation that the permits would not transfer with the property. Mr.
Kerbin researched the issue further and it appears that the general policy is that special use
permits in commercial districts do tend to run with the land.

Councilmember Bloxom asked if the special use permits expire if unused. Mr. Kerbin explained
that they do not but that council could make that a stipulation on future special use permits.

Councilmember Bloxom made a motion to amend both special use permits, 01:17 and 02:17, to
change the condition that the special use permit runs with the owner to the special use permit
runs with the property. Councilmember Krause seconded the motion. The motion passed by
unanimous voice vote.

Amendment for Special Use Permit, 49 King Street, Mr. William Kerbin: Council discussed this
item at the same time as item f.

Discussion of Brush and Limb Pick-Up Schedule Change, Mr. William Kerbin: Mr. Kerbin
explained that this item is just in the initial discuss phase. Mr. Kerbin explained that this idea
stems for the town’s goal of reducing its expenditures. Reducing the frequency of brush and
limb pickup would help reduce the expenses associated with that service. Mr. Kerbin explained
that it may make sense to move the brush and limb pickup to every other month. The potential
annual savings would be approximately $3,000 a year.

Ms. Ann Nock, Market Street, suggested that the town not only worry about the bottom line but
also worry about making sure Onancock is a nice clean place to live. Ms. Nock expressed her
concern that some of the older residents of Onancock will not be able to process their own yard
debris.

Mr. Haydon Rochester, King Street, expressed his concern for bi-monthly pickup of brush and
limb, stating that it could become a liability if someone were to trip over a branch and hurt
themselves,



Mayor Jones expressed his concern for those that have trees removed in town, some of the
companies that specialize in tree removal do not always dispose of the refuse, they leave it for
he town to chip and remove. Some of those pieces are beyond the caliber of what this service
should entail.

Mr. Kerbin shared that this type of heavy lifting increases the town’s chances of having worker’s
compensation claims. Mr. Kerbin suggested that council review the option of out-sourcing the
service.

Councilmember Burger expressed his concern that if the town only chipped bi-monthly all it
would do would be increase the volume in one session.

Councilmember Byrd agreed that the town needs to cut expenses where it can but that this may
not be the best place to look at this time.

i. Discussion of the Accomack Community Band Letter Re: Haunted House, Mr. William Kerbin:
Mr. Kerbin shared that the Accomack Community Band sent a letter to the town. The letter was
a notice that they will not be holding the annual Haunted House this year, unfortunately, the
amount of work that goes into the Haunted House is exceeding their volunteers.

j- Biscussion of the Collection Policy and Delinquent Businesses, Taxes & Fees, Mr. William Kerbin:
Mr. Kerbin discussed the town’s collection policy to help make everyone aware of the tools the
town has for collections on delinquent accounts. Mr. Kerbin shared that the town will be
addressing some of these business delinquencies over the next few months.

Mayor Jones explained to council the town has done a better job of collecting on some of these
delinquencies over the past two years but that there is still more work to be done.

Public Comment:
Ms. Ann Nock, Market Street, suggested that the town partner with Chesapeake Bay Foundation for
additional plantings and parking lot maintenance.

Planning Commission Report:
No meeting.

Waterfront Committee Report:

Councilmember Byrd shared that the town is getting closer to receiving permit approval from the Army
Corp of Engineers for the floating dock upgrade. Councilmember Byrd continued to say that Mrs. Fiege
has been working on identifying possible grants that would assist the town with some facility upgrades.

Mayar Jones shared that the town has also applied to be a sanctuary harbor in the case of extreme
weather or other catastrophes.



Personnel Committee Report:
No meeting.

Holiday Committee Report:
No meeting.

Mayor’s Report:
No report.

Town Manager's Report:
Mr. Kerbin report to council on the following items:

- The town has selected a new website developer, Municode, to update the town’s website.

- The shop building at the Old Onancock High School has been demolished and the only cost to
the town was the employee time to complete the job.

- The Samuel Outlaw Building Board of Directors met on May 10 and officers were elected: Gerald
Boyd, Chair; Zachary Mallete, Vice-Chair; Thelma Gillespie, Secretary; and, Teresa Kellam,
Treasurer.

- Town Hall recently had a telephone system upgrade. Town Hall staff now have voice-mail and
forwarding capabilities.

- Mr. Kerbin attended a Town Hall meeting held by Lynwood Lewis.

- The town is in the process of applying for a Main Street Affiliate Status. The benefits of this
programs are technical assistance and training.

- Mr. Kerbin attended a Virginia Rural Coastal Summit which focused on the creation of an
Economic Development Authority between the counties of the Eastern Shore, Middle Peninsula
and Northern Neck.

- Mr.Kerbin attended a ribbon cutting for the Spaceport Airfield at Wallops island as part of his
involvement with the Wallops Island Regional Alliance.

Closed Session, if needed:
None.

Adjourn:
Councilmember Bloxom made a motion to adjourn. Councilmember Krause seconded the motion. The

motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:58 PM.

Russell Jones, Mayor Lisa Fiege, Deputy Clerk



STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council Date; June 26, 2017
Case Number: SUP 03:17
Tax Map: 85-A2-A-163 From: William H. Kerbin Jr.

General Information

Applicant Tom and Kitty Cardaci

Owner of Record Tom and Kitty Cardaci

Requested Action Proposed use of tax map parcel 85-A2-A-163 isto
operate a homestay currently zoned Residential, 1 A.

Location The parcel is located on the south side of Market
Street.

Parcel Area The total acreage of the parcel is 1.17 acres.

Existing Land Use The parcel is currently used as a single family
dwelling.

Adjacent Land Use The surrounding properties are designated R-1A
Residential, R-1B Residential and Business
Highway B2.

Submitted Proffers None

Analysis

In evaluating this application staff considered the Statement of Intent of the Residential District
R-i.  The Statement of Intent for the Residential District, R-1 states the following; “The
Residential District, R-1 is composed of certain open areas where similar residential
development is recommended to occur by the Onancock Town Plan.” The Residential District
R-1 Zoning District ordinance also states: “The following uses shall be permitted in the R-1,
Residential District subject to all the other requirements of this ordinance, only upon the
obtaining of a Special Use Permit, as defined in Article XV, from the Town Council: A
homestay means a home occupation in which an individual owns a dwelling and also provides
lodging in a portion thereof for temporary periods of time not to exceed 3 weeks.

Conclusion
It is staff’s opinion that the application is consistent with the statement of intent found within the
Zoning Ordinance and meets the special exception language set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.

Suggested Motion: Mr. Chairman, I move to approve SUP 03:17.



TOWN OF ONANCOK

15 NORTH STREET
ONANCOCK, VIRGINIA 23417

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Applicant’s Name: Tom and Kitty Cardacy

Address: 23873 Bailey Nack Dr.

Telephone: _757 787-44%0 Date;  6-09-2017

Location & Legal Description of Property Proposed: ___ 102 Market St

Tax Map 85A2 - A - 163

Deed Reference: 2017 00733

Parcet Number:

Zoning Classification:
Description of Proposed Use:

Vacation or short-term rental for famities vacationing or holding family reunions,

short-term emergency family needs, shor-tean accomodation for those relocating to the area

while seeking a permanent residence and for short-term rental for visiting doctors, nurses or

others needing temporary accommodation while on short-term assignment to Riverside Shore Memorial Hospital.

| certify that the Information listed above is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge,
and | will comply with all provisions of the Code for the Town of Onancock.

ié&}(lg ) R

Signature of Applicant Date

{757) 787-3363 {757) 787-330% WWW.0Nancock com
Phone Fax Website



SUGGESTED MOTION: Mr. Mayor, [ move to adopt the following amendment to Section
21-45 of the sewer and water ordinance related to the adoption of the FY 2018 budget and to add
this ordinance to the Town of Onancock Code:

Sec 21-45  Amendment to Sewer and Water Ordinance

WATER RATES:

First 3,000 gallons $25.36

Next 12,000 galions $8.21 per 1,000 gals
Over 15,000 gailons $8.53 per 1,000 gals

SEWER RATES:

First 3,000 gallons - $56.25

3000-7,000 gallons of usage - $19.81 per 1000 gaillons
7,000-15,000 gallons of usage - $19.25 per 1000 gallons
15,000 -30,000 gallons of usage - $18.98 per 1000 gallons
30,000 -40,000 gallons of usage - $18.70 per 1000 gallons
40,000- 90,000 gailons of usage - $18.43 per 1000 gallons
90,000 -200,000 gallons of usage - $17.60 per 1000 gallons
200,000 - 400,000 gallons of usage - $17.33 per 1000 galions
400,000 - 500,000 gallons of usage - $16.50 per 1000 gallons
Over 500,000 gallons of usage - 16.03 per 1000 galions

AGENDA TOWN COUNCIL June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Adoption of amendment to sewer and water ordinance related to the adoption of
the FY 2018 budget.

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the ordinance.

TIMING: Current

DISCUSSION: The proposed amendment is related to changes to sewer and water rates for the
FY 2018 budget.

Staff: Bill Kerbin
Town Manager

Attachment:

Copy:



SUGGESTED MOTION: Mr. Mayor, 1 move to adopt the Vegetation Growth and
Maintenance ordinance and add this ordinance to the Town of Onancock Code.

AGENDA TOWN COUNCIL June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Vegetation Growth and Maintenance Ordinance
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the ordinance.

TIMING: Current

DISCUSSION: The Town has been following a standard practice of enforcing vegetation
growth and maintenance thercof. The attached ordinance would provide additional authority to
regulate vegetation growth and require property owners to maintain grass and weed height to a

certain standard.

Staff: Bill Kerbin
Town Manager

Attachment: Vegetation and Growth Ordinance

Copy:



Article HI Vegetation Growth and Maintenance

Sec. 11-13  Definition

Grass, weeds, and other foreign growth-
Vegetation unmanaged or uncontrolled of every kind growing or standing on any

parcel of lot other than flowers, vegetable gardens, trees, ornamental shrubbery,
or area classified as wetlands by any government body.

Qccupied property-
Any lot or parcel of land located within the Town that either; contains a structure

or other improvements, or is served by the Town public water system, or is served
by the Town public sewage system, and on which lot or parcel any person or
entity has resided, conducted any business or activity, or physically occupied such
for any period within the 45 days immediately preceding any notice by the Zoning
Administrator.

Owner-
Any person or entity holding record title to any lot or parcel of land within the
Town, including fiduciaries holding title to or having the legal care, custody,
control, or management of any such lot or parcel.

Same set of operative facts-

Means the situation or facts existing either before or after an owner has been
given a Notice to Cut by the Zoning Administrator Officer. The "operative facts”
shall change only after either the owner has cut such grass, weeds, or other
foreign growth to compliance after such Notice, or the Town has so cut.

Undeveloped property-
Any lot or parcel of land located within the Town that either; does not contain a

structure or other improvements, or is not served by the Town public water
system, or does not have an installed sewage service.

Vacant developed property-
Any lot or parcel of land located within the Town that either: contains a structure

or other improvements, or is served by the Town public water system, or is served
by the Town public sewage system, and on which lot or parcel no person or entity
has either resided, conducted any business or other activity, or physically
occupied such lot or parcel at any time within the 45-day period immediately
preceding any Notice by the Zoning Administrator.

Violation-
A violation occurs when any such owner fails to cut such grass, weeds, or other
foreign growth from their lot or parcel to prevent it from attaining the
applicable prohibited height. A Notice to Cut by the Zoning Administrator shall
not be required to constitute a violation by such owner.



Sec.11-14  DUTY OF OWNER TO CUT AND/OR MAINTAIN ANY VACANT
DEVELOPED PROPERTY:

Any owner, shall cut the grass, weeds, and other foreign growth on any vacant
developed or occupied property, located within the Town when the height of such
grass, weeds, or other foreign growth exceeds ten inches (10"} to a height cut not to
exceed five inches (5").

Sec. 11-15 PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY TO:

Portions of undeveloped lots, parcels or tracts of land which are inaccessible to power
mowing equipment; banks of drainage easements; banks of detention ponds, streams,
and other bodies of water, natural or manmade; wooded areas, including understory
vegetation.

Sec.11-16  NOTICE TO CUT:

When there exists upon any vacant developed property, occupied property, or
undeveloped property within the Town grass, weeds, or other foreign growth, as
prohibited herein, the Zoning Administrator shall immediately notify the owner of
such lot or parcel to cut such grass, weeds, or other foreign growth exceeding ten
inches (10") to a height cut not to exceed five inches (5"). Such notification shall be
by certified mail to the address of such owner as appearing on the real estate tax
records of the Town of Onancock. Such owner shall cut such grass, weeds, or other
foretgn growth exceeding ten inches (10"} to a height cut not to exceed five inches
(5") within seven (7) days of the posting of such notice.

Sec. 11-17  PENALTIES FORVIOLATION(S):

Any owner who violates any provision of this Article by not cutting the grass, weeds
or other foreign growth on any lot or parcel as provided for herein shall be subject to
a civil penalty of One Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($150.00) for the first violation, or a
subsequent violation arising from the same set of operative facts. The penalty for
subsequent violations not arising from the same set of operative facts within twelve
(12) months of the first violation shall be Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00). Each
business day during which the same violation is found to have existed shall constitute
a separate offense. In no event shall a series of specified violations arising from the
same operative facts result in civil penalties that exceed a total of Three Thousand
Dollars ($3,000.00) in a twelve (12) month period.

Violation of any provision of this Article shall be a Class 3 misdemeanor in the event
three (3) civil penalties have been imposed on the same defendant for the same or
similar violations, not arising from the same set of operative facts, within a twenty-
four (24) month period. The punishment for a Class 3 Misdemeanor shall be a fine not
to exceed Five Hundred Doilats ($500.00). Classifying such subsequent violations as
criminal offences shall preclude the imposition of civil penalties for the same
violation.



Sec. 11-18 CUTTING BY THE TOWN:

If such grass, weeds, other foreign growth has not been cut as required under the
provisions hereof within ten (10) days from the posting of such Notice to Cut by the
Zoning Administrator, the Zoning Administrator shall cause growth to be cut to the
required height by the employees or agents of the Town, or any contractor at the cost
of such owner.

Where grass, weeds, or other foreign growth have not been cut by the owner within
ten { 10) days from the date of the Notice to Cut by the Zoning Administrator pursuant
to the provisions of this section, and it is necessary for the Town to cut as provided
herein, the cost of such cutting shall be billed to the owner of the property. If such bill
is not paid within fifteen {(15) days, it shall be added to the Town real estate tax bill
on such property and shall be a lien on such property to the same extent and effect as
real estate taxes.

The Town may waive such lien(s) to facilitate the sale of the property. Such lien(s)
may be waived if the amount owed is less than five hundred dollars (3500} and only
as to a purchaser who is unrelated by blood or marriage to the owner and/or who has
no business association with the owner, All such lien(s) shall remain a personal
obligation of the owner of the property at the time the liens were imposed even if
waived.



SUGGESTED MOTION: Mr. Mayor, I move to adopt the VML ordinance to participate in the
Virginia Investment Pool and transfer Town funds to this account.

AGENDA TOWN COUNCIL June 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Authorization to Participate in the Virginia Investment Pool
Ordinance

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the ordinance.

TIMING: Current

DISCUSSION: Staff has been reviewing its financial statements and recommends consolidating
several accounts for fransparency and efficiency. Staff also recommends transferring 1 or more
of these consolidated accounts to the VML Investment Pool. The VML account is currently
yielding a 1.02% return. There is also no penalty for withdrawing funds if the Town chooses the
Stable NAV Liquidity Pool.

Staff: Bill Kerbin
Town Manager

Attachment: Authorization to Participate in VML Pool Ordinance
Trust Fund Agreement
Trust Joinder Agreement
Information Sheet on Virginia Investment Pool

Copy:



APPENDIX D — Trust Joinder Agreement (For Treasurers & Chief Investment Officers)

TRUST JOINDER AGREEMENT
FOR PARTICIPATING POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS IN THE
VACo/VML VIRGINIA INVESTMENT POOL

THIS TRUST JOINDER AGREEMENT is made by and between the Treasurer/Chief
Investment Officer of the ,Virginia (herein referred to
as the “Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer™), the , Virginia
(herein referred to as the “Participating Political Subdivision™), and the Board of Trustees (herein
collectively referred to as the “Trustees™) of the VACo/VML Virginia Investment Pool (herein
referred to as the *“Trust Fund”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Participating Political Subdivision desires to
participate in a trust for the purpose of investing monies belonging to or within its control, other
than sinking funds, in investments authorized under Section 2.2-4501 of the Virginia Code; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Participating Political Subdivision has adopted
an ordinance and/or resolution {(a certified copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A) to
authorize participation in the Trust Fund and has designated the Treasurer/Chief Investment
Officer to serve as the trustee of the Participating Political Subdivision with respect to the Trust
Fund and to determine what funds under the Treasurer’s/Chief Investment Officer’s control shall
be invested in the Trust Fund, and has authorized the Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer to enter
into this Trust Joinder Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Trust Fund, in accordance with the terms of the VACo/VML Virginia
Investment Pool Trust Fund Agreement (the “Agreement”), provides administrative, custodial
and investment services to the Participating Political Subdivisions in the Trust Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer, upon the authorization of the
governing body of , Virginia, desires to submit this Trust Joinder
Agreement to the Trustees to enable , Virginia, to become a
Participating Political Subdivision in the Trust Fund and a party to the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements flowing
to each of the parties hereto, it is agreed as follows:

1. Pursuant to the Board of Trustees’ acceptance of this Trust Joinder Agreement,
the , Virginia, is a Participating Political Subdivision in the Trust
Fund, as provided in the Agreement, and the Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer is authorized to
enter into this Trust Joinder Agreement, and to represent and vote the beneficial interest of
, Virginia, in the Trust Fund in accordance with the Agreement.

Revised 2:5/2016



2. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Trust Joinder Agreement have the
meaning given to them under the Agreement.

3. The Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer shall cause appropriations designated by
the Participating Political Subdivision for deposit in the Trust Fund to be deposited into a
depository designated by the Trustees.

4. The Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer shall timely remit, or timely approve the
remittance of, administrative fees as may be due and payable by the Participating Political
Subdivision under the Agreement into a depository designated by the Trustees.

5. The Partictpating Political Subdivision shall have no right, title or interest in or to
any specific assets of the Trust Fund, but shall have an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust
Fund; however, there shall be a specific accounting of assets allocable to the Participating
Political Subdivision.

6. The Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer shall provide to the Administrator
designated by the Trustees all relevant information reasonably requested by the Administrator for
the administration of the Participating Political Subdivision’s investment, and shall promptly
update all such information. The Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer shall certify said
information to be correct to the best of histher knowledge, and the Trustees and the
Administrator shall have the right to rely on the accuracy of said information in performing their
contractual responsibilities.

7. The Trust Fund shall provide administrative, custodial and investment services to
the Participating Political Subdivision in accordance with the Agreement.

8. The Trustees and the Administrator, in accordance with the Agreement and the
policies and procedures established by the Trustees, shall periodically report Trust activities to
the Participating Political Subdivision on a timely basis.

9. The Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer and the Participating Political
Subdivision agree to abide by and be bound by the terms, duties, rights and obligations as set
forth in the Agreement, as may be amended by the Trustees, which is attached hereto and is
made a part of this Trust Joinder Agreement.

10. The Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer, in fulfillment of his/her duties as the
trustee of the Participating Political Subdivision, retains the services of the Investment Manager
or Managers selected by the Trustees pursuant to the Agreement.

11. The term of this Trust Joinder Agreement shall be indefinite. The Treasurer/Chief
Investment Officer may terminate this Trust Joinder Agreement on behalf of the Participating
Political Subdivision by giving notice in writing to the Trustees. Termination shall be governed
by the provisions of the Agreement.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Treasurer/Chief Investment Officer has caused this
Trust Joinder Agreement to be executed this day of
20 .

»

TREASURER/CHIEF INVESTMENT
OFFICER OF

» VIRGINIA

ATTEST:

Kok ok K

ACCEPTANCE:

VACo/VML VIRGINIA INVESTMENT POOL

By:




VIP

e o
L
Virginia Investment Pool
A Service of VL AALo Fioanie

VACo/VML Virginia Investment Pool

The Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund (VIP) was established to provide political
subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia an investment vehicle to pool their funds and to
invest such funds into one or more investment portfolios under the direction and daily
supervision of a professional fund manager. VIP was developed in 2013 by local Treasurers and
investment officers under the sponsorship of the Virginia Association of Counties and the
Virginia Municipal League.

VIP operates as the “VACo/VML Virginia Investment Pool” and currently offers two portfolios:

¢ The Stable NAV Liquidity Pool, rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s (S&P), offers a
stable net asset value, daily liquidity and a competitive yield. The Stable NAV Liquidity
Pool is ideal for operating funds requiring immediate access.

e The 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund, rated AAf/S1 by S&P, is designed for funds
that can be invested generally for one year or longer. The 1-3 Year Fund’s returns are
benchmarked against the Bank of America Merrill Lynch One-to-Three Year Corporate
& Government Index. The 1-3 Year Fund aims to preserve capital while exceeding the
return of the benchmark over three-year periods.

Both portfolios are governed by investment policies adopted by VIP’s Board of Trustees and that
incorporate the allowable investments identified in the Code of Virginia.

The Board of Trustees is comprised of participating local Treasurers and chief investment
officers elected by participating political subdivisions. The current Trustees are from the
counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Washington and Wise, the cities of Alexandria, Chesapeake, Falls
Church, Roanoke, and Virginia Beach, the towns of Christiansburg and Smithfield, and the
Northern Virginia Transportation Authority. The Executive Directors of VML and VACo serve
as ex officio board members.

VML/VACo Finance is the administrator of VIP. Public Trust Advisors, LLC (PTA) serves as
Investment Manager. PTA is a Securities and Exchange Commission registered, independent
investment advisor with significant local government investment pool experience. PTA manages
more than $19 billion in public funds nationwide. Wells Fargo Bank is VIP’s custodian bank.

Primary benefits of participation in the VACo/VML Virginia Investment Pool include
professional investment management, diversification, shared costs, and competitive rates of
return.

VML/VACo Finance © 804.648.0635 valocalfinance.org
March 2017



VIRGINIA INVESTMENT POOL
TRUST FUND AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is made by and among the Participating
Political Subdivisions that execute Trust Joinder Agreements to participate in the Virginia
Investment Pool Trust Fund, their duly elected Treasurers or other Chief Investment Officers
empowered by law to invest the public funds of such Participating Political Subdivisions, and
the individuals named as Trustees pursuant to Section 107 hereof and their successors (the
“Board of Trustees”). The Participating Political Subdivisions and their Treasurers or Chief
Investment Officers hereby establish with the Board of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees
hereby accepts, under the terms of this Agreement, a trust for the purpose of investing moneys
belonging to or within the control of the respective Participating Political Subdivisions as
allowed by law.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Section 15.2-1500 of the Virginia Code provides, in part, that every locality
shall provide for all the governmental functions of the locality, including, without limitation, the
organization of all departments, offices, boards, commissions and agencies of government, and
the organizational structure thereof, which are necessary to carry out the functions of
government; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 45 of Title 2.2 of the Virgima Code (§§ 2.2-4500 et seq.). of the
Virginia Code provides that all municipal corporations and other political subdivisions may
invest any and all moneys belonging to them or within their control, other than sinking funds, in
certain authorized investments; and

WHEREAS, Section 15.2-1300 of the Virginia Code provides that any power, privilege
or authority exercised or capable of exercise by any political subdivision of the Commonwealth
of Virginia may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other political subdivision of the
Commonwealth having a similar power, privilege or authority pursuant to agreements with one
another for joint action pursuant to the provisions of that section; and

WHEREAS, the City of Chesapeake and the City of Roanoke have adopted ordinances
approving participation in the Virginia Investment Pool for each such locality; and

WHEREAS, the Participating Political Subdivisions and their Treasurers or Chief
Investment Officers and the Board of Trustees of the Virginia Investment Pool Trust
Fund (herein referred to as the “Trust Fund™) hereby establish a trust for the purpose of investing
monies belonging to or within the control of the Participating Political Subdivisions,
respectively, other than sinking funds, in investments authorized under Chapter 45 of Title 2.2 of
the Virginia Code (§§ 2.2-4500 et. seq.); and

WHEREAS, the parties intend that the Trust Fund hereby established shall constitute a
tax-exempt governmental trust under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as

1



amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows:
PART 1- GENERAL PROVISJONS
Section 100. APPLICATION.

The provisions of Part 1 are general administrative provisions applicable to each Part of
this Agreement and provisions applicable to the Board of Trustees.

Section 101. NAME

The name of the trust created by this Agreement shall be the “Virginia Investment
Pool Trust Fund” and the Board shall conduct the Trust’s activities, execute all documents and
sue or be sued under that name. The Board may use such other designations, including “VIP”,
and may adopt such other names for the Trust as the Board deems proper, and the Trust may
hold property and conduct its activities under such designations or names. The Board shall take
such action as they, acting with the advice of counsel, shall deem necessary or appropriate to file
or register such names in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia or the
United States of America so as to protect and reserve the right of the Trust in and to such names.

Section 102. DEFINITIONS.

The following definitions shall apply to this Agreement, unless the context of the term
indicates otherwise, and shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement:

A. Administrator. The term “Administrator” means the Virginia Local
Government Finance Corporation (d/b/a “VML/VACo Finance”) or any successor designated by
the Board of Trustees to administer the Trust Fund.

B. Beneficial Interest. The right of a party to some distribution or benefit from the
Trust Fund; a vested interest in the Trust Fund’s assets.

C. Business Day. Means a day on which banks are not required or authorized by law
to close in the State and on which the Investment Advisor or Custodian is not closed.

D. Code. The term “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
and, as relevant in context, the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended.

E. Custodian. The term “Custodian” means the banks, mutual funds, insurance
companies or other qualified entities selected by the Board of Trustees, under a separate written
document with each, to accept contributions from Participating Political Subdivisions and to
hold the assets of the Trust Fund.



F. Effective Date. The term “Effective Date” means the date coinciding with the
last to occur of each of the following events: (i) passage of an ordinance by each of the
City of Chesapeake and the City of Roanoke approving such governmental entities as
Participating Political Subdivisions in the Trust Fund; (ii) execution by the authorized officer
of each such governmental entity of the Trust Joinder Agreement; (iii) execution of this
Agreement by all members of the initial Board of Trustees and the Administrator; and (iv) any
contribution of cash to the Trust by a Participating Political Subdivision.

G. Participating Political Subdivision. The term “Participating Political
Subdivision” means any county, city, town, or other political subdivision within the State
whose governing body has passed an ordinance or resolution to participate in the Trust Fund, or
is otherwise entitled to participate in accordance with State law, and whose Treasurer or
Chief Investment Officer, serving as trustee for such Participating Political Subdivision, executes
a Trust Joinder Agreement, as provided in Section 301 hereof.

H. Treasurer. The term “Treasurer” means an officer described in Article VII,
Section 4, of the Constitution of Virginia who shall serve as the trustee and representative of its
Participating Political Subdivision for purposes of this Agreement. Treasurers shall vote the
beneficial interest of such Participating Political Subdivision in the Trust Fund, as prescribed in
Part 3 of this Agreement. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed to limit the discretion of a
duly elected Treasurer to invest the public funds of his or her political subdivision in any manner
otherwise permitted by law, nor shall the decision of any local governing body to become a
Participating Political Subdivision under this agreement compel any duly elected Treasurer
having responsibility for such investments of public funds to invest any the locality’s funds in
the Trust Fund created under this Agreement.

L. Chief Investment Officer. The term “‘Chief Investment Officer” means an officer
designated by the governing body of a Participating Political Subdivision to invest public funds
on behalf of the political subdivision and to serve as the trustee of such Participating Political
Subdivision with respect to the Trust Fund, but only in a political subdivision that does not have
an clected treasurer empowered by law to perform those functions. The term “Chief Investment
Officer” may include certain individuals holding the title of “treasurer” for the political
subdivision but who are not included in the definition in Subsection F. Each Treasurer or Chief
Investment Officer, as the case may be, shall be the trustee and representative of his or her
Participating Political Subdivision for purposes of this Agrecment and shall vote the beneficial
interest of such Participating Political Subdivision in the Trust Fund, as prescribed in Part 3
of this Agreement.

L Fiscal Year. The first fiscal year of the Trust Fund shall be a short fiscal year
beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement and ending on June 30, 2014. Each
subsequent fiscal year of the Trust Fund shall begin on the first day of July and end on the
thirtieth day of June.

K. Investment Advisor. Shall mean any person or persons appointed, employed or
contracted with by the Administrator on behalf of the Trust pursuant to Section 202 C. hereof.




L. Investment Policy. The term “Investment Policy” means the Virginia Investment
Pool Trust Fund Investment Policy, as established by the Board of Trustees, as amended from
time to time.

M. Prudent Person. A person who conducts himself faithfully, with intelligence, and
exercising sound discretion in the management of his affairs, not in regard to speculation, but in
regard to the permanent disposition of his funds, considering the probable income, as well as the
probable safety of capital to be invested.

N. State. The term “State” means the Commonwealth of Virginia.

0. Trust Fund. The term “Trust Fund” means the Virginia Investment Pool
Trust Fund, comprised of all of the assets set aside hereunder.

P. Trust Joinder Agreement. The term “Trust Joinder Agreement” means the
agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, pursuant to which the Participating Political
Subdivision joins in the Trust Fund, with the Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer, as the case
may be, serving as the trustee of such Participating Political Subdivision, and agrees to be bound
by the terms and conditions of the Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund Agreement, as provided
in Section 301 hereof.

Q. Trustees. The termn “Trustees” means the individuals who serve on the Board of
Trustees of the Trust Fund pursuant to Section 107 hereof and their successors.

R. Virginia Code. The term “Virginia Code” means the laws embraced in the
titles, chapters, articles and sections designated and cited as the “Code of Virginia,” under the
laws of the State.

S. VIP Stable NAV Liquidity Pool. The name of one of the portfolios of the
Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund in which assets are invested to facilitate overnight liquidity
and the maintenance of a stable Net Asset Value, with the price of shares in the portfolio targeted
to maintain a value of $1.00.

T. VIP 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund. The name of one of the portfolios of the
Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund in which assets are invested in fixed income securities
benchmarked with the Bank of America Mermill Lynch 1-3 Year Corporate/Government Index.
The Pool is intended for the management of assets that Participating Political Subdivisions
intend to invest for one year or longer.

Section 103. GENERAL DUTIES AND MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES.

A General Duties. The Board of Trustees and each Investment Manager appointed
pursuant to this Agreement shall discharge their respective duties under this Agreement solely as
follows: (i) except as otherwise provided by any applicable provision of any statute, regulation,
ordinance, or resolution, for the exclusive purpose of fulfilling the investment objectives of the
Participating Political Subdivisions and defraying the reasonable expenses of administering the



Trust Fund; (ii) with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances
then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with likc aims; and (iii) by
diversifying the investments of the Trust Fund so as to minimize the risk of large losses unless
under the circumstances, it is clearly prudent not to do so. However, the duties and
obligations of the Board of Trustees and each Investment Manager, respectively, as such, shall
be limited to those expressly imposed upon them, respectively, by this Agreement. The Board
of Trustees shall administer the Trust Fund in compliance with Chapter 45 of Title 2.2 of the
Virginia Code (§§ 2.2-4500 et. seq.)

l. Authority of the Trustees.  The Trustees shall have the power and
authority and shall be charged with the duty of general supervision and operation of the
Trust Fund, and shall conduct the business and acttvities of the Trust Fund in accordance
with this Agreement, the Trust Joinder Agreements, rules and regulations adopted by the
Board of Trustees and applicable law.

2. Trustees” Liabilities. No Trustee shall be liable for any action taken
pursuant to this Agreement in good faith or for an omission except bad faith or gross
negligence, or for any act of omission or commission by any other Trustee. The
Trustees are hereby authorized and empowered to obtain, at the expense of the Trust
Fund, liability insurance fully protecting the respective Trustees, the Administrator,
and the Trust Fund from any loss or expense incurred, including reasonable attomey’s
fees, for all acts of the Trustees except bad faith or gross negligence. The Trust Fund
shall save, hold harmless and indemnify the Trustees and Administrator from any loss,
damage or expense incurred by said persons or entities while acting in their official
capacity excepting bad faith or gross negligence.

3. Standard of Review. In evaluating the performance of the Trustees,
compliance by the Trustees with this Agreement must be determined in light of the facts
and circumstances existing at the time of the Trustees’ decision or action and not by
hindsight.

4, Limitations on Liabilities. The Trustees’ responsibilities and liabilities
shall be subject to the following limitations:

a. The Trustees shall have no duties other than those expressly set forth
in this Agreement and those imposed on the Trustees by applicable laws.

b. The Trustees shall be responsible only for money actually received by the
Trustees, and then to the extent described in this Agreement.

c. The Trustees shall not be responsible for the correctness of any
determination of payments or disbursements from the Trust Fund.

d. The Trustees shall have no liability for the acts or omissions of any
predecessor or successor in office.

5



e. The Trustees shall have no liability for (i) the acts or omissions of any
Investment Advisor or Advisors, or Investment Manager or Managers; (ii)
the acts or omissions of any insurance company; (iii) the acts or
omissions of any mutual fund; or (iv) following directions that are
given to the Trustees by the Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer in
accordance with this Agreement.

B. Reliance on Counsel. The Board of Trustees may employ, retain or consult with
legal counsel, who may be counsel for the Administrator, concermning any questions which may
arise with reference to the duties and powers or with reference to any other matter pertatning to
this Agreement; and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and
protection in respect of any action taken or suffered by the Trustees in good faith in accordance
with the opinion of such counsel, and the Trustees shall not be individually or collectively liable
therefor.

C. Meetings. The Board of Trustees shall meet at least three times per year,
and more frequently if called, at the principal office of the Trust Fund or at such other
location as may be acceptable to a majority of the Trustees. One such meeting of the Board
of Trustees shall be held as soon as practicable after the adjournment of the annual meeting of
Treasurers or Chief Investment Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions at such time and
place as the Board of Trustees may designate. Other meetings of the Board of Trustees
shall be held at places within the Commonwealth of Virginia and at times fixed by resolution
of the Board of Trustees, or upon call of the Chairperson of the Board or a majority of the
Trustees, on not less than ten (10) days’ advance notice. Such notice shall be directed to the
Trustees by U. 8. mail to the respective addresses of the Trustees as recorded in the office of
the Trust Fund or by electronic mail. The notice of any special meetings of the Board of
Trustees shall state the purpose of the meeting.

A majority of the number of Trustees elected and serving at the time of any meeting shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Each Trustee shall be entitled to cast a
single vote of equal weight on each question coming before the Board. Proxy voting is not
allowed. The act of a majority of Trustees present at a meeting at which a quorum is present,
shall be the act of the Board of Trustees unless otherwise specified in this agreement. Less than
a quorum may adjourn any meeting.

Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised (11 th edition} shall be the parliamentary
authority for the Board of Trustees.

D. Office of the Trust Fund. The Administrator shall establish, maintain and provide
adequate funding for an office for the administration of the Trust Fund. The address of such
office is to be made known to the parties interested in or participating in the Trust Fund and to
the appropriate governmental agencies. The official books and records pertaining to the Trust
Fund and its administration shall be kept and maintained at the office of the Trust Fund.

E. Execution of Documents. A certificate signed by a person designated by the

6



Board of Trustees to serve as Secretary shall be evidence of the action of the Trustees, and any
such certificate or other instrument so signed shall be kept and maintained at the office of the
Trust Fund and may be relied upon as an action of the Trustees.

F. Appointment and Removal of Administrator. The Virginia Local Government
Finance Corporation is hereby initially designated the Administrator pursuant to an
administrative services agreement between the parties. The Board of Trustees shall provide
compensation for the Administrator to administer the affairs of the Trust Fund. Any three
(3) Trustees may call for a vote of the Board of Trustees to remove the Administrator by
providing no less than 30 days’ notice to the other Trustees and to the Administrator. A vote
will be scheduled at the next meeting of the Board of Trustees, for which sufficient notice can be
given, at which meeting the Administrator may be removed on a majority vote of the
Trustees then serving. Upon removal of the Administrator, the Board of Trustees shall
designate a successor Administrator.

G. Duty to Furnish Information. The Treasurers or Chief Investment Officers and
the Board of Trustees shall furnish to each other any document, report, return, statement or other
information that the other reasonably deems necessary to perform duties imposed under this
Agreement or otherwise imposed by law.

H. Reliance on_Communications. The Board of Trustees may rely upon a
certification of a Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer with respect to any instruction, direction,
or approval of its Participating Political Subdivision and may continue to rely upon such
certification until a subsequent certification is filed with the Trustees. The Trustees shall have no
duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to any statement contained in any such writing but
may accept the same as fully authorized by the Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer and its
Participating Political Subdivision.

Section 104. ADMINISTRATIVE POWERS AND DUTIES.

A. Trustees. The Board of Trustees, in addition to all powers and authorities under
common law or statutory authority, including Chapter 45 of Title 2.2 of the Virginia Code
(§8 2.2-4500 et seq.), and subject to the requirements and limitations imposed by the common
law or statutory authority, including Chapter 45 of Title 2.2 of the Virginia Code (§§ 2.2-4500 et
seq.), shall have and in its sole and absolute discretion may exercise from time to time and at
any time, either through its own actions, delegation to the Administrator, or through a Custodian
selected by the Board of Trustees, the following administrative powers and authority with respect
to the Trust Fund:

1. To receive for the purposes hereof all cash contributions paid to it by or at
the direction of the Participating Political Subdivisions or their Treasurers or Chief
Investment Officers.

2. To hold, invest, reinvest, manage, administer and distribute cash balances
as shall be transferred to the Trustees from time to time by the Participating Political
Subdivisions or their Treasurers or Chief Investment Officers and the increments,



proceeds, earnings and income thereof for the exclusive benefit of Participating Political
Subdivisions.

3. To continue to hold any property of the Trust Fund that becomes
otherwise unsuitable for investment for as long as the Board of Trustees in its discretion
deems desirable; to reserve from investment and keep unproductive of income, without
liability for interest, cash temporarily awaiting investment and such cash as it deems
advisable, or as the Administrator from time to time may specify, in order to meet the
administrative expenses of the Trust Fund or anticipated distributions therefrom.

4, To hold property of the Trust Fund in the name of the Trust Fund, or in the
name of a nominee or nominees (e.g., registered agents), without disclosure of the trust,
or in bearer form so that it will pass by delivery, but no such holding shall relieve the
Board of Trustees of its responsibility for the safe custody and disposition of the Trust
Fund in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; the books and records of the
Board of Trustees shall show at all times that such property is part of the Trust Fund and
the Board of Trustees shall be absolutely liable for any loss occasioned by the acts of its
nominee or nominees with respect to securities registered in the name of the nominee or
nominees.

5. To employ in the management of the Trust Fund suitable agents, without
liability for any loss occasioned by any such agents, so long as they are selected with the
care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent
person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct
of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims.

6. To make, execute and deliver, as trustee, any deeds, conveyances, leases,
mortgages, contracts, waivers or other instruments in writing that it may deem necessary
or desirable in the exercise of its powers under this Agreement.

7. To do all other acts that it may deem necessary or proper to carry out any
of the powers set forth in this Section 104 or Section 202, to administer or carry out the
purposes of the Trust Fund, or as otherwise is in the best interests of the Trust
Fund; provided, however, the Board of Trustees need not take action unless in its opinion
there are sufficient Trust Fund assets available for the expense thereof.

8. To adopt rules and regulations governing the Trustecs’ operations and
procedures.
9. To contract with municipal corporations, political subdivisions and other

public entities of State or of local government and private entities for the provision of
Trust Fund services and for the use or furnishing of services and facilities necessary,
useful, or incident to providing Trust Fund services.

10.  To advise the Administrator on the establishment of expectations with
regard to the provision of administrative services and the establishment of appropriate fee



levels.

1i.  To establish and charge fees for participation in the Trust Fund and for
additional administrative services provided to a Participating Political Subdivision in
addition to any fees charged by other administrative service providers.

12.  To collect and disburse all funds due or payable from the Trust
Fund, under the terms of this Agreement.

13.  To provide for and promulgate all rules, regulations, and forms deemed
necessary or desirable in contracting with Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers and
their Participating Political Subdivisions, in fulfilling the Trustees’ purposes and in
maintaining proper records and accounts.

14.  To employ insurance companies, banks, trust companies, investment
brokers, investment advisors, or others as agents for the receipt and disbursement of
funds held in trust for Participating Political Subdivisions.

15.  To determine, consistent with the applicable law and the procedures under
the Trust Fund, all questions of law or fact that may arise as to investments and the rights
of any Participating Political Subdivision to assets of the Trust Fund.

16. Subject to and consistent with the Code and the Virginia Code, to construe
and interpret the Trust Agreement and to correct any defect, supply any omissions,
or reconcile any inconsistency in the Agreement.

17.  To contract for, purchase or otherwise procure insurance and investment
products.
B. Admunistrator. Pursuant to an administrative services agreement between the

Board of Trustees and the Administrator, the Administrator shall have the power and authority to
implement policy and procedural matters as directed by the Board of Trustees as they relate to
the ongoing operation and supervision of the Trust Fund and the provisions of this
Agreement and applicable law. The Administrator shall immediately make application for a
fidelity bond, to any company designated by the Board of Trustees, in such amount as may be
specified by the Board of Trustees. The premium on such bond shall be paid from the Trust
Fund, which bond shall be continued in force in such amount as the Board of Trustees may from
time to time require. If the Administrator’s bond is refused, or is ever cancelled, the
Administrator may be removed on a majority vote of the Trustees then serving.

Section 105. TAXES, EXPENSES AND COMPENSATION OF TRUSTEES.

A. Taxes. The Administrator, without direction from the Board of Trustees, shall
pay out of the Trust Fund all taxes, if any, properly imposed or levied with respect to the Trust
Fund, or any part thereof, under applicable law, and, in its discretion, may contest the validity or
amount of any tax, assessment, claim or demand respecting the Trust Fund or any part thereof.



B. Expenses and Compensation. The Board of Trustees is authorized to set aside
from Participating Political Subdivision contributions received and the investment income earned
thereon a reasonable sum for the operating expenses and administrative expenses of the Trust
Fund including but not limited to, the employment of such administrative, legal, accounting, and
other expert and clerical assistance, and the purchase or lease of such matenals, supplies and
equipment as the Board of Trustees, in its discretion, may deem necessary or appropriate in the
performance of its duties, or the duties of the agents or employees of the Trust Fund or the
Trustees.

All remaining funds coming into the Trust shall be set aside, managed and used only
for the benefit of Participating Political Subdivisions.

Section 106. COMMUNICATIONS.

Until notice is given to the contrary, communication to the Trustees or to the
Administrator shall be sent to them at the Trust Fund’s office in care of the Administrator. The
Administrator’s address is VML/VACo Finance at 919 E. Main Street, Suite 1100
Richmond, VA 23219.

Section 107. APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL OF TRUSTEES.

A. Appointment of Trustees and Length of Appointment. The number of Trustees
serving on the Board of Trustees shall be fourteen (14).

1. The initial group of Trustees to establish the Trust Fund will be comprised
as follows: (a)} the Treasurer of the City of Chesapeake, (b) the Treasurer of the City of
Roanoke, (c) five (5) individuals designated by the Board of Directors of the Virginia
Association of Counties (“VACo”), (d) five (5) individuals designated by the Board of
Directors of the Virginia Municipal League (“VML”), (e) the Executive Director of
VACo, who shall serve as a non-voting ex officio trustee, and (f) the Executive Director
of VML, who shall serve as a non-voting ex officio trustee. VACo and VML shall
give priority for appointment to Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers. The
appointees of VACo and VML serve until successor trustees are elected at the first
annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers.

2. With the first annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment
Officers, the Board of Trustees shall be divided into three classes, A, B, and C. Class A
will include the Treasurers of the two founding Participating Political Subdivisions, who
shall continue to serve for two 3-year terms until successor trustees are elected at the
annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers to be held in Fiscal Year
2021 (the “Fiscal Year 2021 annual meeting™), and two trustees to be elected to serve
until successor trustees are elected at the annual meeting to be held in Fiscal Year 2018.
Class B, will serve for a transitional period until successor trustees are elected at the
annual meeting to be held in Fiscal Year 2017. Class C will serve for a transitional
period until successor trustees are elected at the annual meeting to be held in Fiscal Year

10



2016.

One of the Class B seats and one of the Class C seats will be designated to be
filled by a Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer of a locality with a population of
75,000 or less, according to the latest decennial census. Individuals who do not meet this
requirement may not be nominated for a seat so designated.

3. On or after July 1, 2014, the Trustees shail solicit nominations from
the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions for
two Class A, four Class B, and four Class C Trusteeships, and such nominees, along with
any nominations from the floor, shall constitute the candidates for the election of
Trustees by vote at the Fiscal Year 2015 annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief
Investment Officers as provided in Section 307. In the event that there are not a
sufficient number of eligible nominees from among Participating Political Subdivisions,
nominations will be provided by the Executive Directors of the Virginia Association of
Counties and the Virginia Municipal League. VACo and VML shall give priority for
nomination, firstly, to Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers of Participating Political
Subdivisions and, secondly, to treasurers and chief investment officers of non-
participating political subdivisions.

4, On or after July 1, 2015, the Trustees shall solicit nominations from
Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions for
Class C Trusteeships, and such nominees, along with any nominations from the floor,
shall constitute the candidates for the election of Trustee by vote at the Fiscal Year
2016 annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Operating Officers as provided in
Section 307. In the event that there are not a sufficient number of eligible nominees from
among Participating Political Subdivisions, nominations will be provided by the
Executive Directors of the Virginia Association of Counties and the Virginia Municipal
League. VACo and VML shall give priority for nomination, firstly, to Treasurers and
Chief Investment Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions and, secondly, to
treasurers and chief investment officers of non-participating political subdivisions.

5. At each annual meeting of Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers
following the transitional period, the successors to the class of Trustees whose terms shall
then expire shall be identified as being of the same class as the trustees they succeed and
clected to hold office for a term expiring at the third succeeding annual meeting of
Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers. Trustees shall hold their offices until the next
annual meeting of Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers for such Trustee’s respective
Class and until their successors are elected and qualify.

6. At each annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers,
the incumbent Trustees will present all nominations received for each class of
Trustees (A, B, and/or C) for which an election is to be held and entertain nominations
from the floor. If a Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer does not designate a particular
class for its nominee(s), such names will be included on the lists of eligible nominees
for each class for which an election is to be held unless the individual named is elected to

11



another seat.

7. No individual Trustee may be elected or continue to serve as a Trustee
after becoming an owner, officer or employee of the Administrator, an Investment
Advisor, an Investment Manager or a Custodian. Beginning with the FY 2017
annual meeting, no Trustee may be elected or continue to serve as a Trustee unless he or
she is a Treasurer or Chief Investment Cfficer of a Participating Political Subdivision or
has received a delegation of authority according to the requirements of Section
107(A)(8). In the event that there are not a sufficient number of eligible nominees as of
the date of the annual meeting, the position will be declared vacant.

8. A Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer may delegate to a subordinate
officer who holds investment responsibilities the authority to seek election to and serve as
a member of the Board of Trustees as a representative of the Participating Political
Subdivision. Such officers will be entitled to the same rights and responsibilities as
Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers with respect to seeking election to and serving
on the Board of Trustees. The delegation of authority and any subsequent rescission of a
delegation of authority must be delivered in writing to the Secretary of the Board of
Trustees. If a delegation of authority is rescinded, the affected position on the Board of
Trustees will be considered vacated. All references to “Treasurers” and “Chief
Investment Officers” in Section 107 will pertain equally to such individuals delegated
authority under this provision.

9. Each Trustee and each successor Trustee shall acknowledge and consent
to his or her election as a Trustee at the annual meeting at which he/she is elected or, if
subsequent to the annual meeting, by giving written notice of acceptance of such election
to the Chairperson of the Trustees.

B. Resignation of a Trustee.

l. A Trustee may resign from all duties and responsibilities under this
Agreement by giving written notice to the Chairperson of the Trustees. The Chairperson
may resign from all duties and responsibilities under this Agreement by giving written
notice to all of the other Trustees. Such notice shall state the date such resignation shall
take effect and such resignation shall take effect on such date but not later than sixty (60)
days after the date such written notice is given.

2. Any Trustee, upon leaving office, shall forthwith tum over and deliver
to the Administrator at the principal office of the Trust Fund any and all records,
books, documents or other property in his or her possession or under his or her control
which belong to the Trust Fund.

C. Removal of a Trustee. Each Trustee, unless due to resignation, death, incapacity,
removal, or conviction of a felony or any offense for which registration is required as defined in
Virginia Code § 9.1-902, shall serve and shall continue to serve as Trustee hereunder, subject to
the provisions of this Agreement.

12



A Trustee shall relinquish his or her office or may be removed by a majority vote of the
Trustees then serving or ipso facto when the Employer which he/she represents is no longer
a Participating Political Subdivision in the Trust Fund. Notice of removal of a Trustee shall
be furnished to the other Trustees by the Chairperson of the Trustees and shall set forth the
effective date of such removal. Notice of removal of the Chairperson shall be furnished to the
other Trustees by the Administrator and shall set forth the effective date of such removal.

D. Appointment of a Successor Trustee. Except as otherwise provided in part A.1 of
this Section with respect to the initial term of Class A Trustees, in the event a Trustee shall die,
resign, become incapacitated, be removed from office, or convicted of a felony or any offense for
which registration is required as defined in Virginia Code § 9.1-902, a successor Trustee shall be
elected forthwith by the affirmative vote of the majority of the remaining Trustees though less
than a quorum of the Board of Trustees. The notice of the election of a successor Trustee shall
be furnished to the other Trustees by the Chairperson. In case of the removal, death, resignation,
etc. of the Chairperson, notice of the election of a successor Trustee, and the new Chairperson,
shall be furnished to the other Trustees by the Administrator.  Nominations for interim
replacement of vacant positions may be made by any member of the Board of Trustees.
The term of office of any Trustee so elected shall expire at the next Annual Meeting of
Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers at which Trustees are elected. The successor Trustee
shall be elected to complete the term for the Class to which such Trustee has been assigned. In
the event that a vacancy occurs in the office of either the Treasurer of Chesapeake or the
Treasurer of Roanoke prior to the FY 2021 annual meeting, the newly assigned Treasurer of
the founding Participating Political Subdivision will automatically assume the vacant position.

E. Trustees’ Rights. In case of the death, resignation or removal of any one or
more of the Trustees, the remaining Trustees shall have the powers, rights, estates and interests
of this Agreement as Trustees and shall be charged with the duties of this Agreement; provided
in such cases, no action may be taken unless it is concurred in by a majority of the remaining
Trustees. However, if such vacancies leave less than a quorum of Trustees, the remaining
trustees may only act to appoint successors. Only after a quorum has been established may
the trustees take the other actions established in this subsection.

Section 108. BONDING.

All Trustees shall immediately make application for a fidelity bond, to any company
designated by the Board of Trustees, in such amount as may be specified by the Board of
Trustees. Premiums on such bonds shall be paid from the Trust Fund, which bonds shall be
continued in force in such amount as the Board of Trustees may from time to time require. If a
Trustee’s bond is refused, or is ever cancelled, except with the Board of Trustees’ approval, such
Trustee may be removed from office by majority vote of the Trustees then serving.

RART 2 - FROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO INVESTMENTS

Section 200.  APPLICATION.

13



The provisions of Part 2 apply to the investments of the Trust Fund.

Section 201, ADMINISTRATION OF TRUST.

A, General. All such assets shall be held by the Trustees in the Trust Fund.

B. Contributions. The Board of Trustees hereby delegates to the Custodian the
responsibility for accepting cash contributions to the Trust Fund, and the Custodian shall
have the responsibility for accepting cash contributions by Participating Political Subdivisions.
Assets held in the Trust Fund shall be dedicated to the benefit of each Participating Political
Subdivision, respectively, or to defraying reasonable expenses of the Trust Fund. All
contributions by a Participating Political Subdivision shall be transferred to the Trust Fund to be
held, managed, invested and distributed as part of the Trust Fund by the Trustees in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement and applicable law.

C. Applicable Laws and Regulations, The Board of Trustees shall be authorized to
take the steps it deems necessary or appropriate to comply with any laws or regulations
applicable to the Trust Fund.

D. Accumulated Share. No Participating Political Subdivision shall have any right,
title or interest in or to any specific assets of the Trust Fund, but shall have an undivided
beneficial interest in the Trust Fund; however, there shall be a specific accounting of assets
allocable to each Participating Political Subdivision.

Section 202. MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENTS OF THE TRUST FUND.

A. Authority of Trustees. Except as set forth in subsections C, D, F, or G of
this Section, and except as otherwise provided by law, the Board of Trustees shall have
exclusive authority and discretion to manage and control the assets of the Trust Fund held
by them pursuant to the guidelines established by the Board of Trustees in the Investment
Policy.

B. Investment Policy. The Board of Trustees, as its primary responsibility under this
Agreement, shall develop written Investment Policies establishing guidelines applicable to the
investment of the assets of the Trust Fund, and from time to time shall modify such Investment
Policies, in light of the short and long-term financial interests of the Participating Political
Subdivisions and the Trust Fund. The Investment Policies shall serve as the description of
the funding policies and method for the Trust Fund.

C. Investment Advisor. From time to time, the Administrator may, pursuant to
approval of the Board of Trustees, appoint one (1) or more independent Investment Advisors
(“Investment Advisor”), pursuant to a written investrnent advisory agreement with each,
describing the powers and duties of the Investment Advisor with regard to the management of all
or any portion of any investment or trading account of the Trust Fund. The Investment Advisor
shall review, a minimum of every calendar quarter, the suitability of the Trust Fund’s
investments, the performance of the Investment Managers and their consistency with the

14



objectives of the Investment Policy with assets in the portion of the Trust Fund for which the
Investment Manager has responsibility for management, acquisition or disposition.

If the Administrator contracted with a lead Investment Advisor prior to the establishment
of this Agreement, the Board of Trustees may ratify such contract. The lead Investment
Advisor will serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees and will be compensated for its
recurring, usual and customary services.

Subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees, the Investment Advisor shall
recommend an asset allocation for the Trust Fund that is consistent with the objectives of the
Investment Policy. If the Board of Trustees shall approve a separate Investment Policy with
respect to assets in a segregated portion of the Trust Fund, the Investment Advisor shall
recommend an asset allocation for such segregated portion of the Trust Fund that is consistent
with the objectives of such Investment Policy. At least annually, the Investment Advisor
shall review the Investment Policy and asset allocation with the Board of Trustees. The
Investment Advisor shall also advise the Board of Trustees with regard to investing in a manner
that is consistent with applicable law, based on majority vote of the Board of Trustees, and in
consideration of the expected distribution requirements of the Plans.

D. Investment Managers. The Board of Trustees, from time to time, may
appoint one (1) or more independent Investment Managers (“Investment Manager”), pursuant to
a written investment management agreement with each, describing the powers and duties of
the Investment Manager to invest and manage all or a portion of the Trust Fund. The
Investment Manager shall have the power to direct the management, acquisition or
disposition of that portion of the Trust Fund for which the Investment Manager is responsible,

The Board of Trustees shall be responsible for ascertaining that each Investment
Manager, while acting in that capacity, satisfies the following requirements:

1. The Investment Manager is either (i) registered as an investment advisor
under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, as amended; (ii) a bank as defined in
thatAct; or (iil) an insurance company qualified to perform the services described
herein under the laws of more than one state; and

2. The Investment Manager has acknowledged in writing to the Board of
Trustees that it is a fiduciary with respect to the assets in the portion of the Trust Fund
for which the Investment Manager has responsibility for management, acquisition or
disposition.

If the Administrator contracted with a lead Investment Manager prior to the
establishment of this Agreement, the Board of Trustees may ratify such contract. The
lead Investment Manager will serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees and will be
compensated for its recurring, usual and customary services.

jok Custodian. The Custodian is responsible for holding all funds and securities in
a separate account in the name of the Trust, collecting all income and principal due the Trust

15



from securities held, accepting contributions and distributing redemptions, and properly
accepting for delivery and/or delivering securtttes in accordance with the contract between the
Trust and the Custodian.

The Board on behalf of the Trust shall employ a bank or trust company organized under
the laws of the United States of America or the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Custodian shall
be subject to such restrictions, limitations, and other requirements set forth in a Custodian
Agreement to be entered into between the Board and the Custodian.

The Custodian shall have such duties as are set forth in the Custodian Agreement. Such
Agreement shall also provide that it may be terminated at any time without cause and without the
payment of any penalty on 45 days’ written notice.

In the event that, at any time, the Custodian shall resign or shall be terminated the Board
shall appoint a successor.

F. Absence of Trustees” Responsibility for Investment Advisor and Manager. Except
to the extent provided in paragraph A of Section 103 above, the Board of Trustees,
collectively and individually, shall not be liable for any act or omission of any Investment
Manager and shall not be under any obligation to invest or otherwise manage the assets of the
Trust Fund that are subject to the management of any Investment Manager. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the Board of Trustees shall be under no duty at any time to make
any recommendation with respect to disposing of or continuing to  retain any such asset.
Furthermore, the Board of Trustees, collectively and individually, shall not be liable by reason of
its taking or refraining from taking the advice of the Investment Advisor any action pursuant to
this Section, nor shall the Board of Trustees be liable by reason of its refraining from taking
any action to remove or replace any Investment Manager on advice of the Investment Advisor;
and the Trustees shall be under no duty to make any review of an asset acquired at the
direction or order of an Investment Manager.

G. Reporting. The Board of Trustees shall be responsible for and shall cause to be
filed peniodic audits, valuations, reports and disclosures of the Trust Fund as are required by law
or agreements. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Board of Trustees shall
cause the Trust Fund to be audited by a certified public accounting firm retained for this purpose
at least once each year. The Board of Trustees may employ professional advisors to prepare
such audits, valuations, reports and disclosures and the cost of such professional advisors shall be
bome by the Trust Fund.

H. Commingling Assets. Except to the extent prohibited by applicable law, the
Board of Trustees may commingle the assets of all Participating Political Subdivisions held by
the Board of Trustees under this Agreement for investment purposes in the Trust Fund and shall
hold the Trust Fund in trust and manage and administer the same in accordance with the terms
and provisions of this Agreement. However, the assets of each Participating Political Subdivision
shall be accounted for separately.

1. Record of Shares. The Trust shall maintain records which shall contain:

16



i.  The names and addresses of Participating Political Subdivisions;

ii.  The number of shares representing their respective interests hereunder;
and

iii. A record of all allocations and redemptions.

Such records shall be conclusive as to the identity of the Participating Political
Subdivisions to which shares are allocated. Only those Participating Political Subdivisions whose
allocation of shares is recorded in the Trust records shall be entitled to receive distributions with
respect to shares or otherwise to exercise or enjoy the rights and benefits related to the beneficial
interests represented by the shares. No Participant shall be entitled to receive any distribution,
nor to have notices given to it, until it has given its appropriate address to the Trust.

J. Maintenance of Records. The Administrator, or such other entity appointed by
the Board, shall record the allocations of shares in the records of the Trust,

K. No Transfer of Shares. The beneficial interests measured by the shares shall not
be transferable, in whole or in part, other than to the Trust itself for purposes of redemption.
However, shares may be redeemed from one Participating Political Subdivision’s account and
the proceeds deposited directly into another Participating Political Subdivision’s account upon
instructions received from both respective Participants.

L. Limitation of Responsibility. The Board shall not, nor shall the Participating
Political Subdivisions or any officer or other agent of the Trust, be bound to determine the
existence of any trust, express, implied or constructive, or of any charge, pledge or equity to
which any of the shares or any interest therein are subject, or to ascertain or inquire whether any
redemption of any such shares by any Participating Political Subdivision or its representatives is
authorized by such trust, charge, pledge or equity, or to recognize any person as having any
interest therein except the Participating Political Subdivision recorded as the Participating
Political Subdivision to which such shares are allocated. The receipt of moneys by the
Participating Political Subdivision in whose name any share is recorded or by the duly authorized
agent of such Participating Political Subdivision shall be a sufficient discharge for all moneys
payable or deliverable in respect of such shares and from all responsibility to see the proper
application thereof.

Section 203. ACCOUNTS.

The Trustees shall keep or cause to be kept at the expense of the Trust Fund accurate and
detailed accounts of all its receipts, investments and disbursements under this Agreement, with
the Trustees causing the Investment Advisor to account separately for each Investment
Manager’s portion of the Trust Fund.

Section 204. DISBURSEMENTS FROM THE TRUST.

A. Trust Payments. The Board of Trustees hereby delegates to the Administrator the

17



responsibility for making payments from the Trust Fund, in accordance with rules and
regulations established by the Board of Trustees. Payments from the Trust Fund shall be made
by electronic transfer or check {or the check of an agent) for deposit to the order of the payee.
Payments or other distributions hereunder may be mailed to the payee at the address last
furnished to the Administrator. The Trustees shall not incur any liability on account of any
payment or other distribution made by the Trust Fund in accordance with this Section. Such
payment shall be in full satisfaction of claims hereunder against the Trustee, Administrator or
Participating Political Subdivision.

B. Payments from the Trust to Participating Political Subdivisions. Any and all
allocated shares may be redeemed at the option and as directed by the Treasurer of Chief
Investment Officer of each Participating Political Subdivision upon and subject to the terms and
conditions provided in this Agreement and the Informational Statement(s). The Trust shall, upon
application of any Participating Political Subdivision, redeem from such Participating Political
Subdivision allocated shares for an amount per share equivalent to the proportional interest in the
net assets of the Trust at the time of the redemption. The procedures for effecting redemption
shall be prescribed by the Board; provided, however, that such procedures shall not be structured
so as to substantially and materially restrict the ability of the Participating Political Subdivions to
withdraw funds from the Trust.

C. Allocation of Expenses. The Trustees shall pay all expenses of the Trust
Fund from the assets in the Trust Fund. All expenses of the Trust Fund, which are allocable to a
particular investment option or account, may be allocated and charged to such investment option
or account as determined by the Trustees. All expenses of the Trust Fund which are not
allocable to a particular investment optton or account shall be charged to each such investment
option or account in the manner established by the Trustees,

Section 205. INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS.

The Trustees shall establish two (2) investment portfolios within the Trust Fund pursuant
to the Investment Policies, for communication to, and acceptance by, Treasurers and Chief
Investment Officers:

i.  VIP Stable NAV Liquidity Pool. Assets in this portfolio will be invested in such a
manner to facilitate overnight liquidity as well as the maintenance of a stable Net
Asset Value, with the price of shares in the portfolio targeted to maintain a value of
$1.00.

i.  VIP 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund. Assets in this portfolio will be invested in
fixed income securities benchmarked with the Bank of America Merrill Lynch 1-
3 Year Corporate/Government Index. The Pool is intended for the management
of assets that Participating Political Subdivisions intend to invest for one year or
longer.

The Board of Trustees may develop additional investment options, reflecting different
risk/return objectives and corresponding asset mixes, for selection by Treasurers and Chief

18



Investment Officers, as alternatives to the current investment options. The determination to
add alternative investment options to the Investment Policies, and the development of each such
investment option, are within the sole and absolute discretion of the Board of Trustees. The
Trustees shall transfer to any deemed investment option developed hereunder such portion
of the assets of the Trust Fund as appropriate. The Trustees shall manage, acquire or
dispose of the assets in an investment option in accordance with the directions given by each
Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer. All income received with respect to, and all
proceeds received from, the disposition of property held in an investment option shall be
credited to, and reinvested in, such investment option.

If multiple investment options are developed, from time to time, the Board of Trustees
may eliminate an investment option, and the proceeds thereof shall be reinvested in the
remaining investment option having the shortest duration of investments unless another
investment option is selected in accordance with directions given by the Treasurer or Chief
Investment Officer.

Separate investment funds within the Trust Fund and varying percentages of investment
in any such separate investment fund by the Participating Political Subdivisions, to the extent so
determined by the Board of Trustees, are expressly permitted.

PART 3 — PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO PARTICIPATING POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS

Section 300. APPLICATION.

The provisions of Part 3 set forth the rights of Participating Political Subdivisions.

Section 301. PARTICIPATING POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS.

A Approval. The Board of Trustees or its designee shall receive applications from
Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions for membership
in the Trust Fund and shall approve or disapprove such applications for membership in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Trust Joinder Agreement, and the rules and
regulations established by the Board of Trustees for admission of new Participating Political
Subdivisions. The Board of Trustees shall have total discretion in determining whether to accept
a new member. The Board of Trustees may delegate the authority for membership approval to
the Administrator.

B. Execution of Trust Joinder Agreement. Once the governing body of a political
subdivision has approved an ordinance or resolution to participate in the Trust Fund, its
Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer, serving as trustee for such political subdivision, may
execute a Trust Joinder Agreement in such form and content as prescribed by the Board of
Trustees. By the execution of the Trust Joinder Agreement, the Participating Political
Subdivision agrees to be bound by all the terms and provisions of this Agreement, the Trust
Joinder Agreement, and any rules and regulations adopted by the Trustees under this
Agreement. The Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer of each Participating Political

19



Subdivision, serving as such Participating Political Subdivision’s trustee shall represent such
Participating Political Subdivision’s interest in all meetings, votes, and any other actions to be
taken by a Participating Political Subdivision hereunder, provided that a Treasurer who elects not
to invest public funds pursuant to the Joinder Agreement shall have no obligation to serve as a
trustee for his or her locality.

C. Continuing as a Participating Political Subdivision. Application for participation
in this Agreement, when approved in writing by the Board of Trustees or its designee, shall
constitute a continuing contract for each succeeding fiscal year unless terminated by the Trustees
or unless the Participating Political Subdivision resigns or withdraws from this Agreement
by written notice sent by its duly authorized official. The Board of Trustees may terminate a
Participating Political Subdivision’s participation in this Agreement for any reason by vote of a
three-fourths (3/4) majority of the voting members of the Board of Trustees present at a duly
called meeting. If the participation of a Participating Political Subdivision is terminated,
the Board of Trustees and the Administrator shall effect the withdrawal of such Participating
Political Subdivision’s beneficial interest in the Trust in accordance with its usual withdrawal
policies.

Section 302. MEETINGS OF PARTICIPATING POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS.

A. Places of Meetings. All meetings of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers
shall be held at such place, within the Commonwealth of Virginia, as from time to time may be
fixed by the Trustees.

B. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment
Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions, for the election of Trustees and for the
transaction of such other business as may come before the annual meeting, shall be held at such

time on such business day between September 15t and October 315! as shall be destgnated
by resolution of the Board of Trustees.

C. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Treasurers or Chief Investment
Officers for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the Chairperson of the Board
of Trustees, by the Board of Trustees, or if Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers together
holding at least twenty percent (20%) of all votes entitled to be cast on any issue proposed to be
considered at the special mecting sign, date and deliver to the Trust Fund's Secretary one or
more written demands for the meeting describing the purpose or purposes for which it is to be
held. At a special meeting no business shall be transacted and no action shall be taken other than
that stated in the notice of the meeting.

D. Notice of Meetings. Written notice stating the place, day and hour of every
meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers and, in case of a special meeting, the
purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given not less than ten (10)
nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to each Participating Political
Subdivision’s Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer of record entitled to vote at such meeting, at
the address which appears on the books of the Trust Fund. Such notice may include any rules
established by the Board of Trustees governing the nomination and election of candidates,

20



determination of vote allocations, and other such matters.

E. Quorum. Any number of Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers together
holding at least a majority of the outstanding beneficial interests entitled to vote with respect to
the business to be transacted, who shall be physically present in person at any meeting duly
called, shall constitute a quorum of such group for the transaction of business. If less than a
quorum shall be in attendance at the time for which a meeting shall have been called, the meeting
may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of the Treasurers and Chief Investment
Officers present. Once a beneficial interest is represented for any purpose at a meeting of
Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers, it shall be deemed present for quorum purposes for the
remainder of the meeting and for any adjournment of that meeting unless a new record date is, or
shall be, set for that adjourned meeting.

F. Voting. At any meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers,
each Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer entitled to vote on any matter coming before the
meeting shall, as to such matter, have one vote, in person, for each two hundred fifty thousand
($250,000) dollars, or fraction thereof, invested in its name in the Trust Fund, based
upon an annual weighted average during the previous fiscal year ending June 30.

Notwithstanding the preceding senteuce, at any meeting held after the date the tenth (10”1)
Participating Political Subdivision joins the Trust, no one Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer
may vote more than twenty percent (20%) of the total votes cast. A Treasurer or Chief
Investment Officer may, by written and signed proxy, designate another employee or elected
official of his/her Participating Political Subdivision to cast his/her votes in person at the
meeting. A delegation of authority issued under Section 106(A) (8) does not replace the
requirement for a written and signed proxy at meetings of the Treasurers and Chief Investment
Officers of Participating Political Subdivisions.

If a quorum is present at a meeting of the Treasurers and Chief Investment
Officers, action on a matter other than election of Trustees shall be approved if the votes cast
favoring the action exceed the votes cast opposing the action, unless a vote of a greater number
is required by this Agreement. If a quorum is present at a meeting of the Treasurers and Chief
Investment Officers, nominees for Trustees for all open seats for each class of Trustees on the
Board of Trustees shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the beneficial interests
entitled to vote in such election.

Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers at the annual meeting will vote at one time
to fill all open positions within a single class of Trustees. Elections will be held by class, in
the order of the length of the terms to be filled, beginning with the longest term. Each Treasurer
or Chief Investment Officer will cast up to the full number of its votes for each open position
within a class of Trustees but may not cast votes for more than the number of open positions in
such class. Those nominees receiving the largest plurality of votes, up to the number of
positions to be filled, will be declared elected. Subsequent votes may be held to break any ties,
if necessary, in order to elect the correct number of Trustees.

21



FART 4 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO OFFICERS
Section 401.  ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF OFFICERS.

A. Election of Officers; Terms. The Board of Trustees shall appoint the officers of
the Trust Fund. The officers of the Trust Fund shall consist of a Chairperson of the Board,
a Vice-Chairperson, and a Secretary. The Secretary need not be a member of the Board
of Trustees and may be the Administrator. Other officers, including assistant and subordinate
officers, may from time to time be elected by the Board of Trustees, and they shall hold office
for such terms as the Board of Trustees may prescribe. All officers shall hold office until the
next annual meeting of the Board of Trustees and until their successors are elected.

B. Removal of Officers; Vacancies. Any officer of the Trust Fund may be removed
summarily with or without cause, at any time, on a three-fourths (34) vote of the Board of
Trustees present at a duly called meeting. Vacancies may be filled by the Board of Trustees.

Section 402. DUTIES.

A. Duties. generally.  The officers of the Trust Fund shall have such duties as
generally pertain to their offices, respectively, as well as such powers and duties as are
prescribed by law or are hereinafter provided or as from time to time shall be conferred by the
Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees may require any officer to give such bond for the
faithful performance of such officer’s duties as the Board of Trustees may see fit.

B. Duties of the Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be selected from among the
Trustees. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or in the resolutions establishing such
committees, the Chairperson shall be ex officio a member of all Committees of the Board of
Trustees. The Chairperson shall preside at all Board meetings. The Chairperson may sign
and execute in the name of the Trust Fund stock certificates, deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts
or other instruments except in cases where the signing and the execution thereof shall be
expressly delegated by the Board of Trustees or by this Agreement to some other officer or
agent of the Trust Fund or as otherwise required by law. In addition, he/she shall perform all
duties inctdent to the office of the Chairperson and such other duties as from time to time may be
assigned to the Chairperson by the Board of Trustees. In the event of any vacancy in the office
of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall serve as Chairperson on an interim basis until
such vacancy is filled by subsequent action of the Board of Trustees.

C. Duties of the Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson, if any, shall be selected
from among the Trustees and shall have such powers and duties as may from time to time be
assigned to the Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson will preside at meetings in the absence
of the Chairperson.

D. Duties of the Secretary. The Secretary shall act as secretary of all meetings of the
Board of Trustees and of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers. When requested, the
Secretary shall also act as secretary of the meetings of the Committees of the Board of Trustees.
The Secretary shall keep and preserve the minutes of all such meetings in permanent books. The

22



Secretary shall see that all notices required to be given by the Trust Fund are duly given
and served. The Secretary may, at the direction of the Board of Trustees, sign and execute
in the name of the Trust Fund stock certificates, deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other
instruments, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated
by the Board of Trustees or by this Agreement. The Secretary shall have custody of all deeds,
leases, contracts and other important Trust Fund documents; shall have charge of the books,
records and papers of the Trust Fund relating to its organization and management as a trust; and
shall see that all reports, statements and other documents required by law are properly filed.

PART S — MISCELLANEQUS PROVIS[ONS
Section 501. TITLES.

The titles to Parts and Sections of this Agreement are placed herein for convenience of
reference only, and the Agreement is not to be construed by reference thereto.

Section 502. SUCCESSORS.

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the
Trustees, the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers, and the Participating Political
Subdivisions.

Section 503. COUNTERPARTS.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original but all of which together shall constitute but one instrument, which
may be sufficiently evidenced by any counterpart. Any Participating Political Subdivision that
formally applies for participation in this Agreement by its execution of a Trust Joinder
Agreement which is accepted by the Trustees shall thereupon become a party to this Agreement
and be bound by all of the terms and conditions thereof, and said Trust Joinder Agreement shall
constitute a counterpart of this Agreement.

Section 504. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT;
TERMINATION OF PLANS.

A. Duration. The Trust shall be perpetual, subject to the termination provisions
contained in Section 504, Subsection C below.

B. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended in writing at any time by the vote
of a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the Trustees. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, this
Agreement may not be amended so as to change its purpose as set forth herein or to permit the
diverston or application of any funds of the Trust Fund for any purpose other than those specified
herein.

The Board of Trustees, upon adoption of an amendment to this Agreement, shall
provide notice by sending a copy of any such amendment to each Treasurer and Chief

23



Investment Officer within 15 days of adoption of such amendment. If a Treasurer or Chief
Investment Officer objects to such amendment, the Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer must
provide written notice of its objection and intent to terminate its participation in the Trust Fund
by registered mail delivered to the Administrator within ninety (90) days of such notice, and if
such notice is given, the amendments shall not apply to such Participating Political Subdivision
for a period of 180 days from the date of adoption of such amendments. The Participating
Political Subdivision’s interest shall be terminated in accordance with the provisions of
paragraph B of this section.

C. Withdrawal and Termination. Any Participating Political Subdivision may at any
time in its sole discretion withdraw and terminate its interest in this Agreement and any trust
created hereby by giving written notice from the Participating Political Subdivision’s Treasurer
or Chief Investment Officer to the Trustees in the manner prescribed by this Section. The Trust
Fund may be terminated in its entirety when all participation interests of all Participating
Political Subdivisions have been terminated in their entirety. This Agreement and the Trust
Fund will then be terminated in its entirety pursuant to Virginia law.

In case of a termination of this Agreement, either in whole or in part by a Participating
Political Subdivision, the Trustees shall hold, apply, transfer or distribute the affected assets of
the Trust Fund in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement and as directed by
the Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer of each Participating Political Subdivision. Upon any
termination, in whole or in part, of this Agreement, the Trustees shall have a right to have
their respective accounts settled as provided in this Section 504.

In the case of the complete or partial termination of this Agreement as to one or more
Participating Political Subdivisions, the affected assets of the Trust Fund shall continue to be
held pursuant to the direction of the Trustees, for the benefit of the Participating Political
Subdivision, until the Trustees, upon recommendation of the Administrator, distribute such
assets to a Participating Political Subdivision, or other suitable arrangements for the transfer of
such assets have been made. This Agreement shall remain in full effect with respect to each
Participating Political Subdivision that does not terminate or withdraw its participation in the
Trust Fund, or whose participation is not terminated by the Trustees. However, if
distributions must be made, the Treasurer or Chief Investment Officer of each Participating
Political Subdivision shall be responsible for directing the Administrator on how to distribute the
beneficial interest of such Participating Political Subdivision. In the absence of such direction,
the Administrator may take such steps as it determines are reasonable to distribute such
Participating Political Subdivision’s interest.

A Participating Political Subdivision must provide written notice of its intent to
terminate its participation in the Trust Fund by registered mail signed by the appropriate official
of the subdivision and delivered to the Administrator.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustees shall be required to pay out any assets
of the Trust Fund to Participating Political Subdivisions upon termination of this Agreement or
the Trust Fund, in whole or in part, up on receipt by the Trustees of written certification from
the Administrator that all provisions of law with respect to such termination have been

24



complied with. The Administrator shall provide the required written certification to the
Trustees within three (3) working days of receiving a written notice of intent to terminate as
described above. The Trustees shall rely conclusively on such written certification and shall be
under no obligation to investigate or otherwise determine its propriety.

When all of the assets of the Trust Fund affected by a termination have been applied,
transferred or distributed and the accounts of the Trustees have been settled, then the
Trustees and Administrator shall be released and discharged from all further accountability or
liability respecting the Trust Fund, or portions thereof, affected by the termination and shall not
be responsible in any way for the further disposition of the assets of the Trust Fund, or portions
thereof, affected by the termination or any part thereof so applied, transferred or distributed;
provided, however, that the Trustees shall provide full and complete accounting for all assets up
through the date of final disposition of all assets held in the Trust.

Section 505. SPENDTHRIFT PROVISIONS: PROHIBITION OF ASSIGNMENT OF
INTEREST.

The Trust Fund shall be exempt from taxation and execution, attachment, garnishment, or
any other process. No Participating Political Subdivision or other person with a
beneficial interest in any part of the Trust Fund may commute, anticipate, encumber, alicnate or
assign the beneficial interests or any interest of a Participating Political Subdivision in the Trust
Fund, and no payments of interest or principal shall be in any way subject to any person’s
debts, contracts or engagements, nor to any judicial process to levy upon or attach the interest or
principal for payment of those debts, contracts, or engagements.

Section 506. VIRGINIA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT.

The Administrator shall give the public notice of the date, time, and location of any
meeting of the Board of Trustees’ or of the Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers in the
manner and as necessary to comply with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (Va. Code
§§ 2.2-3700 ef seq.)). The Secretary or its designee shall keep all minutes of all
meetings, proceedings and acts of the Trustees and of Treasurers and Chief Investment Officers,
but such minutes need not be verbatim. Copies of all minutes of the Trustees and of Treasurers
and Chief Investment Officers shall be sent by the Secretary or its designee to the Trustees.

All meetings of the Board of Trustees and of Treasurers or Chief Investment
Officers shall be open to the public, except as provided in § 2.2-3711 of the Virginia Code. No
meeting shall be conducted through telephonic, video, electronic or other communication
means where the members are not physically assembled to discuss or transact public business,
except as provided in §§ 2.2-3708 or 2.2-3708.1 of the Virginia Code.

Section 507.  JURISDICTION.

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced, and the trust or trusts
created hereby shall be administered, in accordance with the laws of the United States and of
the Commonwealth of Virginia, excluding Virginia's law governing the conflict of laws.

25



Section 508.  SITUS OF THE TRUST.

The situs of the trust or trusts created hereby is the Commonwealth of Virginia. All
questions pertaining to its validity, construction, and administration shall be determined in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Venue for any action regarding this
Agreement is the City of Richmond, Virginia.

Section 509. CONSTRUCTION.

Whenever any words are used in this Agreement in the masculine gender, they shall be
construed as though they were also used in the feminine or neuter gender in all situations where
they would so apply and whenever any words are used in this Agreement in the singular form,
they shall be construed as though they were also used in the plural form in all situations where
they would so apply, and whenever any words are used in this Agreement in the plural form,
they shall be construed as though they were also in the singular form in all situations where they
would so apply.

Section 510. CONFLICT.

In resolving any conflict among provisions of this Agreement and in resolving any other
uncertainty as to the meaning or intention of any provision of the Agreement, the interpretation
that (i} causes the Trust Fund to be exempt from tax under Code Sections 115 and 501(a), and
(ii) causes the participating Plan and the Trust Fund to comply with all applicable requirements
of law shall prevail over any different interpretation.

Section 511. NO GUARANTEES.

Neither the Administrator nor the Trustees guarantee the Trust Fund from loss or
depreciation or for the payment of any amount which may become due to any person under any
participating Plan or this Agreement.

Section 512,  PARTIES BOUND; NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS.

This Agreement and the Trust Joinder Agreements, when properly executed and accepted
as provided hereunder, shall be binding only upon the parties hereto, i.e., the Board of Trustees,
the Administrator and the Participating Political Subdivisions. Neither the establishment of the
Trust nor any modification thereof, nor the creation of any fund or account shall be construed as
giving to any person any legal or equitable right against the Trustees, or any officer or employee
thereof, except as may otherwise be provided in this Agreement. Under no circumstances shall
the term of employment of any Employee be modified or in any way affected by this Agreement.

Section 513. NECESSARY PARTIES TO DISPUTES.

Necessary parties to any accounting, litigation or other proceedings relating to this
Agreement shall include only the Trustees and the Administrator. The settlement or judgment in

26



any such case in which the Trustees are duly served or cited shall be binding upon all
Participating Political Subdivisions and upon all persons claiming by, through or under them.

Section 514. SEVERABILITY.

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall continue to be fully
effective. If any provision of the Agreement is held to violate the Code or to be illegal or invalid
for any other reason, that provision shall be deemed to be null and void, but the invalidation of
that provision shall not otherwise affect the trust created by this Agreement.

Approved by Board of Trustees, September 13, 2013
Amended by Board of Trustees, January 24, 2014
Amended by Board of Trustees, June 19, 2015
Amended by Board of Trustees, September 23, 2016

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

27



ONANCOCK POLICE DEPARTMENT
Summary of Police Activities for

May 2017

Events initiated 1,321
Court:

Number of times attended Twice
Amount of fines $2,515.00

Calls for Service-
Call Type

Number of Times

Assault

Drunk in Public
Reckless Handling of Firearm
Domestic

Larceny

Prostitution
Destruction of Property
Disorderly Conduct
Missing Person

Drug Violation
Panhandling

Hit & Run

N ERNRRB RBLBWRENN




